
1

Goldstein, Jamie (jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: Goldstein, Jamie (jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 7:18 PM
To: Sarah Christensen
Subject: Re: Coastal Rail Trail Seg 10-11 Project - Next Steps

Thank you Sarah.  As I mentioned in the email below, the proposed timeline appears rushed and will not work for 
the City Council.  Therefore the City cannot host the event.  
  
Because there is already confusion about this challenging project and the City’s request for a Town Hall meeting 
with further lead time for noticing and information-sharing, I’m concerned that the City sharing information about 
the meeting could just lead to further confusion. 
 
I'll try giving you a call tomorrow morning to check in. 

From: Sarah Christensen <schristensen@sccrtc.org> 
Sent: Monday, February 24, 2025 8:25 PM 
To: Goldstein, Jamie (jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us) <jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Kahn, Jessica <jkahn@ci.capitola.ca.us>; Regional Transportation Commission <info@sccrtc.org> 
Subject: [PDF] RE: Coastal Rail Trail Seg 10-11 Project - Next Steps  
  
Jamie, 
  
Attached is a letter responding to the City’s request. Please let me know if you have any questions. 
  
Thank you, 
Sarah Christensen, P.E., Executive Director 
Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission  
  
SCCRTC develops and delivers transportation solutions 
for a vibrant, sustainable, and equitable community 
  
From: Goldstein, Jamie (jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us) <jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us>  
Sent: Thursday, February 20, 2025 7:40 PM 
To: Sarah Christensen <schristensen@sccrtc.org> 
Cc: Kahn, Jessica <jkahn@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: Re: Coastal Rail Trail Seg 10-11 Project - Next Steps 
  
Sarah 
  
Thank you for the update and for your team’s efforts in advancing the Coastal Rail Trail project. 
  
Given the significant challenges associated with the proposed project—including conflicts between the Coastal 
Trail alignment and the Zero Emission Rail Project, known circulation issues in Capitola Village, and other 
concerns raised at the February 13 Capitola City Council meeting—as well as the message to the public during 
that meeting that substantial data collection and public notice is required before hosting a community town hall, 
the proposed timeline outlined in your email appears rushed and will not work for the City Council. 
  



2

The City requests that RTC provide the following information before the City places an item seeking a decision 
regarding the Park Avenue trail alignment on a future Council agenda: 
  

1. A plan for the Coastal Trail to be located on the Capitola Trestle, along with a plan to implement it within a 
defined timeline. 

2. A comprehensive plan for the Coastal Rail Trail Segments 10 and 11 through the entire City of Capitola. 
  

We appreciate the resources being dedicated to informing the Council and community. However, given the 
outstanding data needs, we believe it is premature to proceed with the proposed timeline. We look forward to 
working together to develop a path forward. 
  
  
Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 
City of Capitola 
831.475.7300 
  
  
  

From: Sarah Christensen <schristensen@sccrtc.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 18, 2025 3:14 PM 
To: Goldstein, Jamie (jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us) <jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: RE: Coastal Rail Trail Seg 10-11 Project - Next Steps  
  
Jamie 
  
Per our conversation, the project team needs Capitola City Council to make a decision at their March 13 meeting. 
  
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
  
From: Sarah Christensen 
Sent: Tuesday, February 18, 2025 11:27 AM 
To: Jamie Goldstein <jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: Coastal Rail Trail Seg 10-11 Project - Next Steps 
  
Jaime 
  
As a follow up to last week’s City Council meeting, the project team has met to review the schedule as it relates to 
incorporating design changes for the Park Avenue alignment. It is important for the project team to move forward 
with project development activities in order to meet the funding deadlines for the project. Below is our proposed 
plan: 
  

1. March 4 – Town Hall in Capitola – we plan to have stations around the room with various topics in an effort 
to satisfy Council’s request for information, given the various moving parts of the trail and rail projects. 
Topics include the Coastal Rail Trail Seg 10-11 Project, Zero Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project, and 
Capitola Trestle. Please let us know if there are other topics of interest that you’d specifically like to see 
ASAP as we are mobilizing significant resources to respond to Council’s request. 
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2. March 13 – City of Capitola Council Meeting – summary of information presented at the March 4 Town Hall, 
summary of input received from the community, and present a staff recommendation or options (pending 
town hall outcome). 

3. March 20 – RTC meeting to approve funding for additional design and analysis related to the Park Ave 
alignment, pending outcome of March 13 City Council meeting. 

4. March 25 – County of Santa Cruz BOS meeting to approve contract amendment, pending outcome of 
funding approval by RTC on March 20, so that County can move forward on the project design. 

  
Unfortunately at this point in time, major policy changes such as abandoning the freight easement to build an 
interim trail is not advised within the funding deadlines for the Coastal Rail Trail Seg 10-11 project under 
development. This type of policy shift would not be at the discretion of the Capitola City Council, although if 
Council wanted to make a statement to the Commission they are free to do so. In other words, if Council has a 
strong desire for the interim trail, it is too late to accomplish that for Coastal Rail Trail Segments 10-11 (due to its 
funding deadlines) and County/RTC staff are going to do everything within our control to manage the project risk 
and successfully deliver this project so that our region does not lose the grant funds. If at the end of the day the 
City does not want a facility along Park Avenue there is a possibility that this portion of the project could be 
removed from the project scope. 
  
Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns about the above approach. I am generally available 
today and tomorrow. 
  
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
  



 

 

February 24, 2025 
 
Jamie Goldstein 
City Manager 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
 
RE: RTC Response to City of Capitola Regarding CRT Seg 10-11 Project 
Development 
 
Dear Mr. Goldstein, 

Thank you for your email dated February 21, 2025, regarding the Coastal 
Rail Trail Segments 10 and 11 project. We appreciate your thoughtful 
feedback and the City of Capitola’s continued engagement in advancing this 
important 4.2 mile trail project along the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line 
between 17th Avenue in Live Oak, traversing the length of the City of 
Capitola, to State Park Drive in Aptos. Prior to the February 13th City Council 
meeting presentation, the SCCRTC, in partnership with the County of Santa 
Cruz and Capitola staff, have presented the Coastal Rail Trail and Passenger 
Rail projects to City Council to share the conceptual design of improvements 
through Capitola, including options for the Capitola Trestle. We welcome the 
continuing dialogue as we work toward implementing transportation services 
along the branch line. For reference, Attachment 1 to this letter includes a 
chronology of the recent SCCRTC and partner agency presentations to the 
Capitola City Council outlining the various transportation improvements 
proposed along the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line.  

We fully understand and acknowledge the City Council’s request for more 
time and community engagement before moving forward with decisions on 
the Coastal Rail Trail alignment. We also recognize the importance of taking 
the necessary time to ensure that all stakeholder concerns are addressed in 
a thoughtful and transparent manner. Regarding the requests outlined in 
your letter: 
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Plan for the Coastal Rail Trail along the Capitola Trestle  

As the RTC has described at previous City Council meetings, converting the 
Capitola Trestle to a trail would be contingent on a complex process to the 
abandonment of the freight easement, which is subject to approval by a 
federal agency, the Surface Transportation Board (STB). To begin this 
process, the common carrier of the branch line would need to file for 
abandonment of the freight easement, which they have indicated to the RTC 
they are not interested in pursuing.  It is possible that an outside entity, 
such as the RTC, can file for adverse abandonment of the freight easement, 
but that has yet to take place. If either scenario occurs, the timing and 
duration of an abandonment process is uncertain. While abandoning the 
freight easement is not entirely infeasible, SCCRTC staff anticipates this 
process could take time and may present challenges and cause delay if 
opposed.  

Given the uncertainty and potential opposition associated with abandoning 
the freight easement, staff considers such an action infeasible in the short 
term, especially within the funding deadlines associated with the Coastal Rail 
Trail project under development, most notably the state’s $67 million Active 
Transportation Program grant.  

 Should abandonment of the freight easement succeed and allow for 
conversion of the Capitola Trestle to trail use in the future, additional 
funding would be required to implement this improvement as outlined in the 
RTC’s Repurposing Conceptual Study which estimated to be at least $7 
million in 2021 dollars. We are committed to working with the City of 
Capitola to explore viable alternatives and plan for the long-term 
development of the Coastal Rail Trail across Soquel Creek, however given 
the constraints noted above, a solution to construct a trail along the Capitola 
Trestle is considered a long-term process that is not achievable within the 
funding deadlines of the Coastal Rail Trail Segments 10 and 11 project. For 
reference, Attachments 2 & 3 are Frequently Asked Questions SCCRTC have 
developed regarding the Capitola Trestle and Railbanking.  

Comprehensive Plan for Segments 10 and 11 through Capitola 

The County of Santa Cruz and SCCRTC are planning to host a town hall on 
March 4 to provide additional information to the community and City Council 
regarding (1) alignment, design, and funding of the Coastal Rail Trail 

https://www.sccrtc.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/Submittal_Capitola-RR-Bridge-Conceptual-Repurposing-Study-Rev-1.pdf
Sarah Christensen
Underline
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project; and (2) the Zero Emission Passenger Rail and Trail concept 
development that is underway, which includes replacement of the Capitola 
Trestle railroad bridge with a facility that can serve both rail & trail. We 
request your support and partnership to host the meeting and get the word 
out, and are hopeful that this engagement opportunity will help to address 
outstanding questions and provide the necessary data for informed decision-
making by City Council.  

While we are aware of the concerns regarding the project’s timing, we want 
to emphasize that this project is heavily dependent on meeting the funding 
deadlines associated with the $67 million Active Transportation Program 
grant awarded to the trail project. Subsequent to the town hall, at the 
upcoming March 13 City Council meeting, we hope to present what we heard 
at the town hall, recommend a path forward for trail options, and receive 
direction from the City Council. This milestone is critical in maintaining the 
momentum needed to stay on schedule. Any delay to this process puts the 
trail project’s funding at risk. 

We are fully committed to collaborating with the City of Capitola to develop a 
solution that aligns with the City’s priorities and ensures that the Coastal Rail 
Trail is designed in a way that best serves the community, while balancing 
project delivery risk. We are grateful for the opportunity to work together, 
and we look forward to the upcoming town hall and to continuing the 
dialogue at the March 13 City Council meeting. 

Please do not hesitate to reach out if you require further clarification or 
additional information. Thank you for your partnership and your continued 
dedication to this vital project. 

Sincerely, 

 

Sarah E Christensen, Executive Director 
Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission  
 
cc: info@sccrtc.org 
 
 

mailto:info@sccrtc.org


Attachment 1 
Chronology of Recent SCCRTC Presentations to Capitola City Council for 
Transportation Projects along the Branch Line 

May 27, 2021 The RTC staff presented regional projects to the City Council including the 
Coastal Rail Trail projects under development and the SCCRTC-led Capitola 
Trestle repurposing study that concluded in the fall of 2021.  

March 23, 2023 County and RTC staff presented an overview of the design of Coastal Rail 
Trail Segments 10 and 11 project through the City of Capitola, including a 
description of plans for the Capitola Trestle, and noted that a trail on the 
Trestle is excluded under the Ultimate Trail configuration. 

October 26, 2023 County and RTC staff presented a second design overview of the project, 
and responded to City staff’s request for details about why a trail on the 
Capitola Trestle was not included as part of the Ultimate Trail Configuration 
or the County’s ATP grant application, as well as a request for details on the 
planned improvements to route trail users through Capitola Village.  

March 23, 2023 RTC staff presented the Zero Emission Passenger Rail and Trail project, 
including future rail and trail improvements for the Capitola Trestle.  

February 8, 2024 RTC staff presented the Zero Emission Passenger Rail & Trail (ZEPRT) Project, 
with the scope of work including replacement of the Capitola Trestle railroad 
bridge with a facility that can serve both rail & trail, and requested input on 
the preliminary Purpose & Need statement for the project.  

February 13, 2025 The project team  including City, County, and RTC staff presented the Park 
Avenue Traffic Calming Improvements with Coastal Rail Trail Segment 10-11 
Project options. The City staff recommendation was for the City Council to 
review options for Coastal Rail Trail improvements in the Park Avenue right-
of-way and identify Option A (as described in the staff report) as the 
preferred alternative for further analysis. Action was not taken by the 
Capitola City Council. 
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